
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY MARCH 18, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.   
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

1. Impact 7G – Doug Ongie, Environmental Planner; will be presenting a brief summary 
regarding Downtown East Redevelopment (former Croell Ready-mix site). 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 4, 2019. 
  
2. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Third Reading, Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the 
City of West Branch by adding several amendments regarding front yard, back 
yard, and zero-lot line requirements.   

2. Second Reading, Ordinance 764 – An Ordinance Rezoning a Portion of the 
Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, of Real Property From R-1 to R-2 Residential 
District.  

3. Second Reading, Ordinance 765 – An Ordinance Rezoning the Kuene/Kofron 
Property from A-1 (Agricultural) to Planned Unit Development District (PUD).  

4. Resolution 1791 – A Resolution Hiring Zack Murdock As a Police Officer for the City 
of West Branch, and Setting the Hourly Wage for the Position until Completion of a 
Law Enforcement Academy.  

5. Resolution 1796 – A Resolution Setting a Public Hearing on a Proposed 
Development Agreement with EMV Holdings, LLC (aka Little Lights) which includes 
Annual Appropriations Tax Increment Rebates.  

6. Discussion Item: Casey’s Agreement Old Store Site.  
7. Resolution 1792 – Approving a Fireworks Agreement with J&M Displays for 

Hoover Hometown Days.  
8. Resolution 1793 – A Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with 

the West Branch Community School District relating to the Summer League 
Programs.    

9. Resolution 1794 – A Resolution Approving Various Contracts for the Hoover’s 
Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of $6,530.17.  

 
10. Resolution 1795 – Approving the Recreation Facility, Park & Sport Field Use and 

Fee Policy. 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Staff Hearsays 

 
 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 
 
J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not 

approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               March 4, 2019  
Council Chambers                                                                       7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch regular City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

Mayor Laughlin then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the 

Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jordan Ellyson, Jodee Stoolman and Nick 

Goodweiler were present. Brian Pierce arrived at 7:23 p.m.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following 

City staff:  Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, City Attorney Kevin Olson, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Park & 

Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman and Police 

Chief Mike Horihan. City Administrator Redmond Jones was absent. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Impact 7G – Doug Ongie (This presentation was postponed to a later date.) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mary McGee, West Branch resident addressed the Council with some recent safety concerns she 

had experienced. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting February 19, 2019. 

Motion to approve a liquor license refund of $308.75 for Thirsty on 30 Inc. DBA Thirsty on 80 due to business closing 

effective February 7, 2019. 
 
Motion to approve a liquor license renewal for Casey’s General Store #3463 – 615 S. Downey Street, West Branch, 

Iowa. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report.   
 

EXPENDITURES     3/4/2019   
AMAZON      BOOKS, OFFICE & PROG. SUPPLIES   953.47  
BIG COUNTRY SEEDS INC    ICE MELT      1,396.50  
CAROL ROGHAIR     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,058.55  
COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA I    HIGHWAY SALT     1,963.84  
CROELL, INC.     SAND      780.10  
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP    BOND COUNSEL FEES $4,200,000    12,045.96  
DREAMHOST WEBHOSTING    MALWARE PROTECTION    36.00  
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES    MEMBERSHIP DUES     723.00  
IOWA MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFF    DUES BRICK 18-19     100.00  
IOWA SECTION AWWA    TRAINING      80.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    SUPPLIES      224.85  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.    GARBAGE STICKERS     600.00  
JOSHUA LANGFORD     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,107.98  
KNOCHE, REBECCA     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    150.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,285.15  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    WATERMAIN REPAIR     8,820.85  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    NEW BOILER     13,894.30  
OLSON, KEVIN D     LEGAL SERVICES     1,500.00  
OVERDRIVE INC     AUDIOBOOKS     193.94  
PAC-VAN INC     STORAGE UNIT     4,405.50  
PARKSIDE SERVICE     SERVICE      126.00  
QUILL CORP     OFFICE SUPPLIES     71.86  
SHRED-IT USA     DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION    48.15  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS     244.00  
UPS      SHIPPING      22.82  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    ADMIN USGS FLOOD STUDY    447.40  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    PLAN REVIEW     688.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    COLLEGE ST BRIDGE - BID & CONST ENGINEERING 5,855.58  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    PLAN REVIEW     688.00  
VERIZON WIRELESS     VERIZON WIRELESS     1,141.12  
WELLMARK, INC.     ADMIN - FLEX CLAIMS     118.80  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   GYM RENT - VOLLEYBALL    720.00  
TOTAL            61,491.72  
    
PAYROLL      2/22/2019      55,263.89  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
MEDIACOM      CABLE SERVICE      41.90  
UPS       SHIPPING       66.10  
    
TOTAL            108.00  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          116,863.61  
    
FUND    
001   GENERAL FUND     29,006.02  
022   CIVIC CENTER     43.44  
031   LIBRARY     6,510.66  
110   ROAD USE TAX     21,757.47  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   12,950.91  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY   9,864.84  
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE    7,427.22  
318   COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENT   609.48  
600   WATER FUND     16,963.13  
610   SEWER FUND     11,730.44  
    
GRAND TOTAL     116,863.61 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Discussion: Proposed Ordinance to all bike riders 14 or over wear helmets.  

Chief Horihan thanked the Hoover Elementary 4th grade class for their suggestion for an ordinance on 

requiring children under 14 to wear a helmet when riding bikes, scooters and skateboards.  He said it 

was a good idea, but didn’t feel an ordinance was needed.  Horihan agreed to promote a safety program 

to raise awareness on bicycle safety and said the police department would coordinate a bicycle rodeo to 

demonstrate bicycle safety.  Horihan also said he was working with Main Street Sweets on issuing 

‘safety coupons’ to kids wearing helmets when riding bikes, scooters and skateboards but noted there 

would be a limit on coupons issued.  Horihan said more information would be presented at a later date. 
 

 

Second Reading Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the City of West 

Branch by adding several amendments regarding front yard, back yard, and zero-lot line requirements. 

/Move to action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Ellyson to approve 2nd reading of Ordinance 763.  AYES:  Stoolman, 

Ellyson, Miller, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce. Motion carried.   

 
 

Public Hearing: Adopting the City Administrator’s recommended budget for fiscal year beginning July 

1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020. 
 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:15 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the 

public hearing at 7:16 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1788 – Adopting the City Administrator’s recommended budget for fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020. /Move to action. 



 

 

Stoolman asked for clarification on the Emergency General Fund Levy.  Edgar explained the purpose of 

the fund listed on form 16-142. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1788.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, 

Miller, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 
     

Public Hearing: Considering rezoning a portion of the Meadows Subdivision, Part 4, of real property 

from R-1 Residential District to R-2 (lots 40-57). 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m. Chris Kofoed, KLM Investments LLC explained the 

request for additional R-2 lots would help meet the demand for people wanting to downsize and making 

housing more affordable for new homeowners.  There were no additional public comments.  Laughlin 

closed the public hearing at 7:19 p.m. 

 
 

First Reading Ordinance 764 – An Ordinance rezoning a portion of The Meadows Subdivision, Part 

Four, of real property from R-1 Residential District to R-2 (lots 40-57). /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 764.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce. Motion carried.   

 
 

Public Hearing: Rezoning the Kuene/Kofron Property  

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:21 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the 

public hearing at 7:22 p.m. 

 
 

First Reading Ordinance 765 – An Ordinance rezoning the Kuene/Kofron property from A-1 

(Agricultural) to a Planned Unit Development District (PUD). /Move to action. 

Laughlin spoke in favor of the project and said it would really help West Branch grow.  He said the 

location was perfect for this type of project and is excited to see it happen.  Stoolman questioned the 

access points for the development.  Laughlin confirmed that there are two access points to Parkside 

Drive and South Second Street. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 765.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 

Resolution 1785 – Approving Northside First Addition Condos Site Plan (Brian Shay). / Move to 

action. 

Mayor Laughlin invited resident Frank Frostestad, 102 Crestview Drive (lot 7 in Lynch’s Second 

Addition shown on the site plan) to address the Council.  Frostestad said he had attended the Planning 

& Zoning Commission (P&Z) meeting on February 26, 2019 and had a list of concerns on this 

development.  First with the lack of privacy of his property and the neighbor to the east of his.  He 

requested that a privacy fence be constructed around the perimeter of the site.  Second, that sidewalks 

be installed to get any children potentially living here in the future a safe route to school.  Frostestad 

said that several years ago, a City project added sidewalks to N. Oliphant St. in order to provide a safe 

route to school for West Branch children and he said that was a great project.  He continued that he 

recommends the developer add sidewalks be added to the property and to direct them toward Northside 

Drive.  Third, he commented that the proposed site is a large pond during heavy rain events.  He 

continued and said that surrounding properties on the west and north all drain to this area and is 

concerned that adding housing would only add to the problems.  Lastly, he raised a concern that the fire 

department had for on-street parking that could inhibit access for emergency vehicles.  

Brian Shay, developer confirmed that fencing and fire lanes have been added to the site plan per the 

request of the Planning & Zoning Commission.  



 

 

City Attorney Kevin Olson confirmed that the West Branch Police Department can enforce fire lane 

and handicap violations on private property. 

Norma Jean Havlik-Smith, 104 Crestview Drive (lot 6 in Lynch’s Second Addition shown on the site 

plan) then addressed the Council with her concerns.  She started with saying she was disappointed with 

the lack of communication from the developer and the City on this project.  She and her spouse heard of 

the project by word of mouth from another resident not affected by the project.  While she later watched 

the November P&Z meeting and understood that the site plan process doesn’t require public notice 

when rezoning is not requested, she felt the process could be improved.  She continued with her list of 

concerns of the development; lack of green space, density with the number of units, and a potential of a 

sidewalk to be constructed between her property and lot 5, shown on the site plan.  Havlik-Smith listed 

safety concerns with the placement of a sidewalk in that location as that the ground has a steep slope 

and is in an area that City crews pile snow from the cul-de-sac as they did this winter.  Havlik-Smith 

asked that if a sidewalk has to be constructed there that the City be responsible for maintaining it as 

well as be responsible for injuries that could occur there.  She asked the Council to consider a 

developer’s requirements for resident notification, open communication with affected residents and 

signage of the proposed development to ensure that encroachment be minimized.   

 

Brian Shay, developer for Northside First Addition Condos, 650 Broadmoor Drive, North Liberty then 

took the podium to address the residents’ concerns.  He stated that in October of 2018 he met with City 

staff and Zoning Administrator Terry Goerdt and presented his concept plan showing the number of 

units, building setbacks and confirmed that the property had the correct zoning for this type of project.  

From this meeting, a site plan was developed and engineering took place to identify any challenges with 

the property.  Drainage to and from this property was identified and because of that, the original 

number of units was decreased and retention and detention structures were added.  He further stated that 

residents to the south of this property were also being impacted from the original grading of the 

property, but Shay’s and the City Engineer have addressed that issue with further grading along the 

south edge of the property.  A preliminary site plan was presented to the P&Z commission on 

November 27, 2018.   

 

Shay apologized to the residents for his words being taken out of context with regard to ‘being a good 

neighbor’.  Shay reaffirmed that he told City staff and Planning and Zoning that he would do whatever 

was asked of him and whatever surrounding neighbors wanted as he recognized that this would impact 

them.  He responded to the fencing concern first.  Shay said that his original plan was to fence the entire 

property but said the Zoning Administrator preferred a natural vegetative screen for future maintenance 

reasons.  Shay said he was then contacted by a resident (Havlik-Smith) who requested a privacy fence 

due to the close proximity of her property line and building B.  Shay confirmed that a fence will be 

provided on the west, north (toward lot 6 and around lot 7) of the property.  Due to the apartment 

complex located on lot 44, which is located within five feet of the property line, it was decided by P&Z 

that vegetative screening would be more appropriate than a fence.  To address the issue of sidewalks, 

Shay said that P&Z meeting held on February 26, 2019, it was decided that a sidewalk was needed 

between buildings A and B so that the overflow parking located on the north side of the property would 

direct people through the development rather than on the edge of North Downey St.  To further address 

the request for a sidewalk going to the south of the south driveway (toward a ditch at the corner of N. 

Downey and Northside Drive, Shay said it is virtually impossible to add a sidewalk there as he would 

not be able to meet ADA requirements.  He said he is willing to pay the City for future urbanization 

costs or putting in the sidewalk at a later date when the City urbanizes the west side of North Downey.  

The Mayor agreed that a sidewalk right now is impossible to install and would most likely need to be 

removed later to join up with the future urbanization.  Miller disagreed and said that he walked the 

property and took some measurements.  He continued and said if you put nineteen residents on this 

‘island’ with no way to get them off, then it may not be the best use of the property.  Olson said an 

agreement could be written up to address the sidewalk issue on North Downey and could be tied to the 



 

 

issuance of the first building permit.  Olson confirmed that the Council wants two sidewalk agreements 

written, one for a connection between lots 5 and 6 of Lynch’s Second Addition, and the other for future 

urbanization of a sidewalk from the south property line to Northside Drive.  Stoolman asked for 

clarification on where the water would go from the property.  Shay said his property would convey the 

water to the north/south ditch on the west side of Downey to an intake between his property and N. 

Oliphant, under N. Downey to a wetland on the east side of N. Downey and eventually to the creek by 

the Hoover Nature Trail.  The Council continued to discuss the sidewalk issue with this property and 

other new developments, but didn’t all agree on a solution.  Miller suggested that the City Engineer 

provide some estimated costs for a sidewalk connection from Northside Drive to the south edge of 

Shay’s property to see what kind of costs would be associated with that type of project.  Goodale 

mentioned that a four inch water main from the property would dead end on the south end of the 

property and suggested that the sidewalk connection could be coordinated with extending the water 

main to Northside Drive as a city project.  Shay said he is willingly to do whatever the Council asks 

with regard to connecting the future sidewalk, but said him going to the south property line at this time 

didn’t make sense as it would most likely need to be removed and replaced in the future.  Further 

discussion led the Council to request an agreement drawn up by the City Attorney that requires Shay to 

install a sidewalk from the south driveway of building C to the south edge of his property.  They also 

directed the City Engineer to draft plans, specifications and costs for the City for a sidewalk from 

Northridge Drive to the south edge of Shay’s property.  This condition also is attached to Shay 

installing said sidewalk on the south to the certificate of occupancy of building C.  The consensus for 

approval of the site plan is as follows; Shay will install an engineered approved sidewalk from the south 

driveway to the south edge of the property.  The sidewalk must be installed before a certificate of 

occupancy will be issued on building C of the project.  The site plan will be approved based on this 

contingency.  Stoolman who originally made the motion to approve the site plan, withdrew her motion.  

Goodweiler asked the residents who attended this evenings meeting if this sidewalk agreement satisfied 

their concerns and they replied that it did.  Olson confirmed that the agreement would not include a 

sidewalk between lots 5 and 6 as earlier discussed.  Council agreed. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler to approve the site plan with the attached sidewalk 

contingency agreement.  AYES:  Ellyson, Goodweiler, Pierce.  NAYS:  Stoolman, Miller.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Resolution 1786 – Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivision Final Plat. /Move to action. 

Laughlin explained that the developer requested that the final plat be approved before municipal 

improvements are installed so that lot 26 can be sold to Little Lights.  Olson explained that the City 

Code allows for this approval with the developer providing the City with a letter of credit for those 

improvements and that without the approval of the final plat and letter of credit, lots cannot be sold. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1786.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 

Resolution 1787 – Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivider’s Agreement. /Move to action. 

Stoolman questioned sidewalks on Cedar-Johnson Road.  Olson explained that since the road is not 

urbanized, sidewalks cannot be installed.  However, with each individual lot when sold, this agreement 

which will be recorded requires the current property owner to install sidewalks.  Olson explained that 

the City could install as part of the project and assess the cost to the property owner, or the owner could 

do it at their own expense when the street improvement are done.  Olson confirmed that this is the same 

argument as with the Shay property. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1787.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, 

Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  Stoolman.  Motion carried.   

 
Motion to accept the resignation of Wesley Homeister. /Move to action. 



 

 

Laughlin said Homeister has accepted a job in Polk County and will be leaving the West Branch Police 

Department.  Olson explained that Homeister will owe the City approximately $3900 from his 

employment agreement which is fifty percent of his tuition, mileage, food costs while in the academy, 

equipment and book fees.  Payments will be made to the City monthly in the amount of at least 

$300.00.  Council asked why information in the packet didn’t reflect Olson’s calculations and Finance 

Office Edgar replied that some additional information was discovered after the packet was distributed. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman, Ellyson.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 

Motion to approve starting the hiring process for a West Branch Police Officer. /Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Ellyson, Stoolman, Miller, Pierce, Goodweiler.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 
Resolution 1789 – Approving an Engineering Services Agreement not-to-exceed $59,200.00 with 

Veenstra & Kimm Inc. for services related to the relocation of water main and force main necessary for 

the I-80 widening project. / Move to action. 

Schechinger said the IDOT is widening I-80 from Iowa City to west of West Branch and with the 

project they will be removing a bridge that serves as a secondary emergency access to the south side of 

town to the industrial area.  The DOT will be replacing the bridge with a box culvert and thus requiring 

the City to move utilities.  The water main and force main will need to be moved so they can place the 

culvert.  IDOT will be reimbursing the City for the cost of engineering and the cost of moving the 

utilities for the project.   

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1789.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1790 – Amending a construction Engineering Service Agreement in the amount not-to-

exceed $34,000 with V&K for services related to added scope of work items on 2nd Street from College 

to Green Street. /Move to action. 

Schechinger said this amount is in the bottom line of the original non- participating part of the project 

although it was previously approved.  This amendment is to include the additional engineering. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1790.  AYES:  Pierce, Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones was absent for this meeting. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reported that he has received an agreement from Casey’s and that he drafted a proposed 

development agreement for Little Lights. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No report. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Miller thanked the Public Works staff for the great job they did this year on snow plowing.  

 

Laughlin said he would be scheduling the next review for the City Administrator. 

 

 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 9:14 p.m.  

 

 

       

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 11, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading, Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning 

Code of the City of West Branch by adding several amendments regarding 

front yard, back yard, and zero-lot line requirements. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 13, 2019  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission approved Ordinance 747 in 2017 adding language to 

Chapter 165.27(R-1) and 165.28(R-2) for zero-lot line requirements.  As an oversight, language 

was added to section 165.27 (R-1) which does not allow for zero-lots. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission met on February 5, 2019 and reviewed Ordinance 747 and 

approved removing all updates that allow zero-lots in the R-1 district.   

Ordinance 763 corrects this error, a copy of Ordinance 747 is attached indicating the corrections 

necessary. 

 

It is now necessary to approve Ordinance 763 that corrects the former Ordinance 747. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 747 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City’s Zoning 

Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on said zoning revisions has now been held as required 

by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 165.11(2) of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

subsection (E) which reads as follows: 

 

”E. In all residential districts there shall be a minimum front yard required for that 

particular zoning district in this Chapter; provided, however, that where lots 

compromising thirty (30) percent or more of the frontage within two hundred (200) feet 

of either side lot line are developed with buildings at a greater or lesser setback than 

stated in said particular zoning district, the front yard requirement for an undeveloped 

lot shall be the average of these building setbacks.  In computing the average setback, 

buildings located on reverse corner lots or entirely on the rear half of lots shall not be 

counted.  However, in no case shall the required front yard setback exceed fifty (50) 

feet.   

 

2. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot lines shall have a lot area of three thousand eight hundred and fifty (3850) 

square feet per dwelling unit.  Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a building line frontage of 

thirty-five (35) feet. 

  

3. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(C) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

4. Amendment.  Section 165.28(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding subparagraph (3) 

which reads as follows: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a frontage of not less than thirty-five (35) feet and a 

lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) square feet.” 

Ordinance being amended 



 

 

 

5. Amendment.  Sections 165.29(3) (B) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence at the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) 

square feet with a minimum width at the established building line of thirty-five (35) 

feet.” 

 

6. Amendment.  Section 165.29(3)(G) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

7. Amendment.  Section 165.35(2)(C) is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety and 

replacing it with the following: 

 
“C. Rear Yard.    No rear yard shall be required in the Central Business CB-1 District.  

When abutting a residential district, a twenty (20) rear yard is required.” 

 

7. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

8. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

9. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  November 6, 2017  

Second reading: November 20, 2017 

Third Reading: December 4, 2017 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 763 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH BY ADDING SEVERAL AMENDMENTS REGARDING FRONT YARD, 

BACK YARD, AND ZERO-LOT LINE REQUIREMENTS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City’s Zoning 

Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on said zoning revisions was previously held as required 

by law. 

 

 WHEREAS, this Ordinance replaces Ordinance 747, passed and approved December 

4, 2017; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 165.11(2) of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

subsection (E) which reads as follows: 

 

”E. In all residential districts there shall be a minimum front yard required for that 

particular zoning district in this Chapter; provided, however, that where lots 

compromising thirty (30) percent or more of the frontage within two hundred (200) feet 

of either side lot line are developed with buildings at a greater or lesser setback than 

stated in said particular zoning district, the front yard requirement for an undeveloped 

lot shall be the average of these building setbacks.  In computing the average setback, 

buildings located on reverse corner lots or entirely on the rear half of lots shall not be 

counted.  However, in no case shall the required front yard setback exceed fifty (50) 

feet.   

 

2. Amendment.  Section 165.28(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding subparagraph (3) 

which reads as follows: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a frontage of not less than thirty-five (35) feet and a 

lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) square feet.” 

 

3. Amendment.  Sections 165.29(3)(B) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence at the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) 

square feet with a minimum width at the established building line of thirty-five (35) 

feet.” 

 

4. Amendment.  Section 165.29(3)(G) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section:  

Ordinance being proposed 



 

 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

5. Amendment.  Section 165.35(2)(C) is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety and 

replacing it with the following: 

 
“C. Rear Yard.    No rear yard shall be required in the Central Business CB-1 District.  

When abutting a residential district, a twenty (20) rear yard is required.” 

 

6. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

7. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  February 19, 2019  

Second reading: March 4, 2019 

Third Reading: March 18, 2019 
 

 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 764 – An Ordinance Rezoning a Portion of 

the Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, of Real Property from R-1 

Residential District to R-2 lots 40-57. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 11, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Second reading of Ordinance 764, rezoning a portion of The Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 to R-2, 

lots 40-57. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 764 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS 

SUBDIVISION, PART FOUR, OF REAL PROPERTY FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT TO R-2 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”) has petitioned the City of West Branch 

for a zoning district amendment for properties located in the Meadows Subdivisions, said 

parcel being legally described as:   

 

 A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF 

PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW1/4) OF 

THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER 

(SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF 

WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 44 OF THE GREENVIEW 

ESTATES SUBDIVISION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 

THENCE S1º19’13”E, 195.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE 

86º46’30”E, 315.69 FEET; THENCE S3º13’30”E, 24.96 FEET; THENCE 143.10 FEET 

ALONG A 216.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD BEARING 

S21º52’40”E, 141.10 FEET);  

THENCE S40º56’32”E, 967.89 FEET; THENCE S49º03’24”W, 50.37 FEET; THENCE 89.97 

FEET ALONG A 300.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING 

S57º38’54”W, 89.63 FEET); THENCE N40º56’32”W, 961.68 FEET; THENCE S88º40’13”W, 

77.11 FEET; THENCE S01º19’47”E, 127.44 FEET; THENCE N82º46’48”W, 37.29 FEET;  

THENCE S88º40’47”W, 140.28 FEET; THENCE N01º19’13”W, 351.60 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING.(the “Parcel). 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an R-2 

Residential District, in place of an R-1 Residential District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the 

City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a R-2 Residential District in place of R-1 Residential District. 



 

 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication 

as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a 

whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

*  *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

 Read First Time: March 4, 2019 

 Read Second Time: March 18, 2019  

 Read Third Time: April 1, 2019 

 

 

 

                                  

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 765 – An Ordinance Rezoning Property 

known as the Kuene / Kofron Property (located behind the BP gas station) 

from A-1 to a Planned United Development (PUD). 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 11, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Second reading of Ordinance 765, rezoning the Kofron property, (behind the BP gas station) 

from A-1 to a Planned Unit Development for the purpose of creating a commercial business and 

residential neighborhood. 

 

Special consideration requested: The applicant has requested to collapse the last two readings 

because the developer would like this consideration concluded before his scheduled real estate 

closing April 1st. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 765 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN 23.28 ACRE PARCEL OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 80 AND 

EAST OF PARKSIDE DRIVE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 AND 

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner of the property described below has petitioned the City of 

West Branch for a zoning district amendment for property located north of and adjacent to 

Interstate 80 and east of Parkside Drive, said parcel being legally described as:   

 

 A PORTION OF LOT D OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, 

TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

  

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West, of the 

Fifth Principal Meridian, West Branch. Cedar County, Iowa; Thence S00°52'40"E, along the 

West Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8, a distance of 1637.40 feet; Thence 

N89°24'33"E, 60.52 feet, to a Point on the East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E" of Interstate 

No. 80, and the POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence continuing N89°24'33"E, 232.95 feet, to the 

Southwest Corner of Cookson Subdivision, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 

1211 at Pages 333-334 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence 

N89°22'29"E, along the South Line of said Cookson Subdivision, 650.25 feet, to the Southeast 

Corner thereof, and the Southwest Corner of Stoolman's 1st Addition, in accordance with the 

Plat thereof Recorded in Book 140 at Page 129 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's 

Office; Thence N89°25'17"E, along the South Line of said Stoolman's 1st Addition, and the 

Easterly projection thereof 803.44 feet, to the Northwest Corner of Lot A of Lot D, in accordance 

with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 3 at Page 265 of the Records of the Cedar County 

Recorder's Office; Thence S01°02'25"E, along the West Line of said Lot A of Lot D, a distance 

of 885.86 feet, to its intersection with the North Right-of-Way Line of said Interstate No. 80; 

Thence S85°19'36"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line, 3.75 feet, to a Point 150.00 feet 

normally distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 72+13; Thence 

S89°35'43"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line 313.16 feet, to a Point 160.00 feet normally 

distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 69+00; Thence N68°48'05"W, along 

said Northerly Right-of-Way Line, 1294.32 feet, to the Southeast Corner of the Tract of Land 

conveyed by Warranty Deed, as Recorded in Book 668 at Pages 88-89 of the Records of the 

Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence N00°23'24"W, along the East Line of said conveyed 

Tract, 334.42 feet; Thence S89°24'33"W, along a line parallel with and 40.00 feet normally 

distant Southerly from the North Line of said Conveyed Tract, 169.05 feet, to a Point on the 

West Line of said Conveyed Tract and the said East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E"; Thence 

N10°07'24"W, along said West Line and East Right-of-Way Line, 40.56 feet, to the Point of 

Beginning. Said tract of land contains 23.28 Acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions 

of record. 

(the “Parcel”); and  

 

 



 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in a 

PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of an AG Agriculture District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the 

City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa : 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of AG 

Agriculture District. 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication 

as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a 

whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

 Read First Time: March 4, 2019 

 Read Second Time: March 18, 2019 

 Read Third Time: April 1, 2019 

 

 

 

               

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1791 – A Resolution Hiring Zachary Murdock As a Police 

Officer for the City of West Branch, and Setting the Hourly Wage for the 

Position until Completion of a Law Enforcement Academy. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kory Hanna, Police Sergeant 

DATE:  March 11, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 4 

Zachary Murdock has been a dedicated certified reserve police for the City of West Branch for 

the last two years. He is committed to be a WBPD Officer and understands that he has to live 

within 8 miles of West Branch.  Mr. Murdock took the police written test and scored 100 percent. 

He is willing to sign an employee agreement that he would reimburse the city of any training 

costs if he leaves the employment of WB within 4 years.  (Declining scale) I would recommend 

that he get sworn in as West Branch Police Officer.   I would suggest that he gets paid $19.50 

dollars an hour prior to completion of the academy and then suggest his salary be increased (to 

the wage of our last patrol officer) to $22.90 upon competition of the academy.  

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1791 

 

A RESOLUTION HIRING ZACK MURDOCK AS A POLICE OFFICER FOR THE 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, AND SETTING THE HOURLY WAGE FOR THE 

POSITION UNTIL COMPLETION OF A LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is interested in hiring Zachary Murdock as a police 

officer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Attorney will prepare an officer training reimbursement agreement 

which will also require City Council Approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, until such aforementioned agreement is Approved and the Completion of a Law 

Enforcement Academy is achieved the hourly wage within this resolution shall hold. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  That the City of West Brach, Iowa will hire Zachary Murdock as a Police 

Officer. 

 

Section 2 The following person and position named shall be paid the hourly wage 

indicated and the City Clerk is authorized to issue payroll checks, less legally required or 

authorized deductions for the amounts set out below, and make such contributions to IPERS 

and Social Security or other purposes as required by law or authorization of the Council: 

 

Position Name Wage Basic Hours 

Police Officer Zachary Murdock 19.50 40 / Week 

 

 

Section 3 The above named employee is subject to the City of West Branch Personnel 

Policies and Procedures applicable to their department. 

 

Section 4 This resolution will be effective upon final passage of the City Council. 

 

Passed and approved this 18th day of March 2019. 

 

               

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1796 – A Resolution Setting a Public Hearing on a Proposed 

Development Agreement with EMV Holdings, LLC (aka Little Lights) 

which includes Annual Appropriations Tax Increment Rebates. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
 

This Agreement is to make annual appropriation incremental property tax payments will not be 

a general obligation of the City, but will be payable solely and only from incremental property 

tax revenues generated from the Little Lights Event Center development located within the 

Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Area. All payments under this Agreement 

will be subject to annual appropriation of the City Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH EMV HOLDINGS, LLC (LITTLE LIGHTS) AND 

AUTHORIZATION OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX INCREMENT 

PAYMENTS 

 

 The City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, will meet at the City 

Council Chambers, 110 N. Poplar Street, on the 1st day of April, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. at 

which time and place a public hearing will be held on the proposal to enter into a Development 

Agreement with EMV Holdings, LLC. and the City of West Branch in connection with the 

construction of an event center, which provides for annual appropriation tax increment payments 

in a total amount not-to-exceed $150,000, as authorized by Section 403.9 of the Code of Iowa, 

as amended. 

 

 The Agreement to make annual appropriation incremental property tax payments will not 

be a general obligation of the City, but will be payable solely and only from incremental property 

tax revenues generated from the event center located within the Amended and Restated West 

Branch Urban Renewal Area.  All payments under this Agreement will be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council. 

 

 At the meeting, the City Council will receive oral and written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City.  Thereafter, the City may, at the meeting, or at an 

adjournment thereof, take additional action to approve the Development Agreement or may 

abandon the proposal. 

 

 This notice is given by order of the City Council in accordance with Section 403.9 of the 

Code of Iowa, as amended. 

 

 

/s/__________________________________________ 

 Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319) 351-2277 

Return to:  City Clerk, City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Polar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) entered into by and 

between the City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358, 

hereafter referred to as “City”; and EMV Holdings, LLC, 281 310th Street, West Liberty, Iowa 

52776-901, hereafter referred to as “Developer.” 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner (or holds a long-term land lease) of that certain 

real property legally described as: 

 

Lot 26, Cedar’s Edge, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, according to the recorded 

plat thereof in Book ____ at Page ____, Records of the Cedar County Recorder 

 

(the “Development Property”); and 

   

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to develop the Development Property as an 

approximate 13,400 square foot events center that will hosts weddings and other large events 

on the Development Property (the “Development Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Development Property is located within the West Branch Urban 

Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to construct the Development Property on the 

Development Property in accordance with the requirements outlined in this Development 

Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE PRECEDING RECITALS, AND 

FOR THE MUTUAL CONSIDERATION OF ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT, THE 

DEVELOPER AND CITY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

A. Developer’s Obligations. 
 

 1. The Developer shall either acquire the Development Property or enter into a 

long-term lease on the Development Property in order to facilitate construction of the 

Development Project. 

 

 2. The Developer shall construct the Development Project on the Development 

Property and shall have received an occupancy permit for said Development Project by the 

City no later than eighteen (18) months from the date of this Agreement. 

 

 3. The Developer, shall operate the Development Project on the Development 

Property as a events center for a period of ten (10) years following the issuance of an 



 

 

occupancy permit for the Development Project.  In the event that there is a dispute as to 

whether the Development Project is being operated as an events center, the City’s sole opinion 

shall be the final arbiter of that question.   

 

 4. The Developer shall pay, when due, all real estate taxes levied against the 

Development Property to the Cedar County Treasurer.  Prior to receiving any economic 

development tax increment payments, the Developer shall provide receipts to the City 

evidencing payment of said real estate taxes.  Failure to pay property taxes for any year shall 

constitute a breach of this Agreement by the Developer.   

 

B. City’s obligations. 
 

1. In recognition of the Developer’s obligations set out above, the City agrees to 

maintain the tax increment ordinances in effect and to make economic development tax 

increment payments (the “Payments”) to the Developer in each fiscal year during the term of 

this Agreement, pursuant to Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa.  Said annual Payments 

shall be the lesser of the seventy percent (70%) of the incremental tax revenues received by the 

City from the Development Property by the Cedar County Treasurer, or $15,000.00, payable in 

two equal, semi-annual installments.   

 

2. The Payments shall be made on June 1st and December 1st (the “Payment Date”) 

of each fiscal year.  The Developer expressly agrees that no Payment will be made to the 

Developer if the Developer is not in compliance with this Agreement.  

 

 4. The Payments to the Developer contemplated under this Agreement will be for 

ten (10) fiscal years (a total of 20 payments), the first Payment being made on the first tax 

payment based upon the assessment for the completed Development Project.  (By way of 

example, if the Project receives an occupancy permit on December 15, 2019, the first Payment 

contemplated under this Agreement will be based upon the January 1, 2020 tax assessment 

made by the Cedar County Assessor, and the first Payment would be made December 1, 2021 

because taxes payable on January 1, 2020 assessment are paid by October 1 and April 1 of 

2021.)     

 

5. The Payments contemplated under this Agreement shall not constitute general 

obligations of the City, but shall be made solely and only from incremental property taxes 

received by the City from the Cedar County Treasurer, which are attributable to the 

Development Property. 

 

6. Each Payment contemplated under this Agreement shall be subject to the annual 

appropriation of the City Council.  Prior to December 1 of each year during the term of this 

Agreement, the City Council of the City shall consider the question of obligating for 

appropriation to the funding of the Payments due in the following fiscal year 100% of the  

amount of incremental tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year. (the 

“Appropriated Amount”).  The Developer expressly agrees that in no event shall the 

Appropriated Amount, when added to the previous Payments, exceed the $150,000.00. 

 



 

 

The City agrees to certify pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Iowa Code by December 1st 

of each year during the term of this Agreement to the Cedar County Auditor an amount equal 

to the most recent Appropriated Amount.  The City will give notice to the Developer of the 

amount certified pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code on or before December 1st of each 

year, for the fiscal year beginning the following July 1st.  If the City fails to certify an amount 

to be collected pursuant to said Section 403.19 of the Code for the obligations contemplated 

under this Agreement, then an event of non-appropriation shall have occurred, as discussed 

herein.  If an event of non-appropriation occurs, the City’s obligation to pay pursuant to this 

Agreement for the fiscal year in question shall cease, and the Developer expressly 

acknowledges that is has no recourse against the City for said non-appropriation.  Future 

Payments, if any, contemplated under this Agreement shall be subject to future appropriation 

by the City, all of which shall be contemplated pursuant to said Section 403.19 and certified 

each December 1st for the fiscal year beginning the following July 1st.   

 

C. Administrative Provisions. 
 

1. Each party represents to the other that the party has full power and authority to 

enter into this Agreement and that this Agreement is a binding Agreement duly authorized by 

the governing body of each party.  
 

2. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and may 

not be amended or assigned without the express permission of the other party.  However, by 

execution of this Agreement, the City hereby authorizes the Developer to assign the rights to 

receive the Payments to a private lender, as security, without further action of the City Council 

and the receipt of a written assignment to receive the Payments from the Developer. 
 

3. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors 

and assigns of the parties. 

 

4. This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the 

State of Iowa, and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

5. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 

Agreement and the application thereof shall not be affected and shall be enforceable to the 

fullest extent permitted by law.  For purposes of this Agreement, the Corridor Drive 

Improvements and the Heartland Drive Improvements shall be treated as separate projects.  
 

6. That this Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 

(Signature pages to follow) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE OF CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, CEDAR COUNTY, ss: 
 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of __________________, 

2019, by Roger Laughlin and Redmond Jones II as Mayor and City Clerk respectively of the City 

of West Branch, Iowa. 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Notary public 

  



 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE OF DEVELOPER: 

 

 

 

       By:_______________________________ 

       Erin Morrison-Vincent, Manager 

        

        

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF ______________________: 

 

 On this ____ day of _________________, 2018, this document was executed by Erin 

Morrison-Vincent, as Manager of EMV Holdings, LLC. 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1796  

 

A RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH EMV HOLDINGS, LLC (AKA LITTLE 

LIGHTS) WHICH INCLUDES ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS TAX INCREMENT 

REBATES 

 

WHEREAS, the City and the EMV Holdings, LLC (the “Developer”) have negotiated an 

agreement whereby the developer will construct an event center in the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, as part of said development, the City will rebate annual appropriations of tax 

increment assist the Developer in constructing and operation for said development by granting 

the Developer annual appropriation incremental tax rebates on said development; and  

 

WHEREAS, prior to the execution of a development agreement which includes incremental 

tax rebates, the City Council must hold a public hearing.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, Iowa, that a 

public hearing on the proposed development agreement be and the same is hereby set for 7:00 

p.m. on Monday, April 1, 2019, in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 110 N. Poplar Street, 

West Branch, Iowa 52358. Further, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of said public 

hearing as required by law. 

 

* * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

  __________________________________  

  Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________  

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Casey’s Agreement – Old Store Site 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  March 11, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Based on a rebate agreement supported by incremental tax revenues between the City of West 

Branch and Casey’s Marketing Company the Old Casey’s Store Site was to be demolished and 

sold.  The timelines set forth in the agreement were not met and were renegotiated into the 

attached agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction from City Council 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1792 – Approving a Fireworks Agreement with J&M 

Displays for Hoover Hometown Days. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 12, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Hoover’s Hometown Days is an event that the community recognize the talents and contributions 

of Our Nation’s 31st President Herbert Hoover.  The fireworks display is typically the finale to 

this special event. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1792 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A FIREWORKS AGREEMENT WITH J&M DISPLAYS 

FOR HOOVER HOMETOWN DAYS. 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s premier event of the year is Hoover’s Hometown Days.  A day that the 

community recognize the talents and contributions of Our Nation’s 31st President of the United States, 

Herbert Hoover; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2019 – 2020 budget for Hoover’s Hometown Days include funding 

for entertainment and services for the event; and  

 

 WHEREAS, J&M Displays, a firm that has provided this service to the City in the past, and 

have submitted a proposed service agreement in the amount of $25,000 to provide a fireworks display 

in the Herbert Hoover National Historic Site.  J&M Displays, also understands and is responsible for 

submitting all documentation required to gain a Special Use Permit from the National Park Service; 

which will be needed to provide a fireworks display in the National Park; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the aforementioned agreement are hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is directed to 

execute the agreements on behalf of the City.   
 
  

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1793 – A Resolution Approving a Memorandum of 

Understanding with the West Branch Community School District relating 

to the Summer League Programs. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russel, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  March 12, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This agreement supports the merger between the City and Summer League programs, as well 

as helps to qualify the use of the lights, buildings and equipment located at “summer league” 

fields. This agreement would be in place April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020. 
 
Through collaborative discussions with Melissa Russell, City Parks and Recreation Director 

and Marty Jimmerson, Superintendent of Schools the following parameters, understandings 

and agreements have been established regarding the use of District owned (fields), light poles 

and meter box used for the youth boys’ baseball and youth girls’ softball diamonds and the 

concession and storage stands located near the “summer league” field areas.  
 
The West Branch “Facility, Sport Field Use and Fee Policy” has been changed at the summer 

league fields to align with the maintenance fee the school charges youth sports groups for 

tournaments and events.  This fee will not affect West Branch Parks and Recreation teams 

since they already pay maintenance through their registration fees.  Scrimmages and games 

against teams not in the district will be are considered an event and will be charged $20.  There 

is no fee for weekly practices at the summer league fields.  
 
Event and Tournament Fee at Summer League Fields 

Events / tournaments requiring (4) hours or less of facilities time will be charged $20 dollars 

for post maintenance fee. Events / tournaments requiring (4) hours or more of facilities time 

will be charged $30 dollars per facility (field) for facilities use, in addition to a $30 fee for post-

maintenance.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

March 11, 2019 
TO: West Branch Board of Education and City of West Branch 
RE: Youth Baseball / Youth Softball Fields (Legion Field area) Memorandum of 
Understanding between City of West Branch and the West Branch Community 
School District 
For clarification, the “summer league” fields refer to the east and west ball diamonds 
located near the tree line on the hill south-west of the high school.  The fields are owned 
by the school district and have historically been used by the summer league organization. 
This agreement supports the merger between the City and Summer League programs, as 
well as helps to qualify the use of the lights, buildings and equipment located at “summer 
league” fields. 
Through collaborative discussions with Melissa Russell, City Parks and Recreation 
Director and Marty Jimmerson, Superintendent of Schools the following parameters, 
understandings and agreements have been established regarding the use of District 
owned (fields), light poles and meter box used for the youth boys’ baseball and youth 
girls’ softball diamonds and the concession and storage stands located near the “summer 
league” field areas.  
Background: The lights have been used to support youth football practices (YSA teams), 
summer league, USSSA and ASA teams, as well as occasional use the District’s JV football 
teams and flag football teams.  The poles and lights were donated by generous citizens 
many years ago. Field lights for the youth boys’ field and youth girls’ field are on this 
meter.  For clarity, the “summer league” ball fields, backstop, fences, buildings, batting 
cages, field lights and poles (electric services) located at the “summer league” fields are 
the property of the West Branch Community School District.  
District utility bills related to that meter totaled $1,210 for the 2018 year.  Previous years 
have averaged around $1100.  This is not an adsorbent amount, but as the District begins 
implementation of future facilities improvements, clear operational control is essential. 
The following parameters and understands were developed collaboratively: 
Part I: General Agreements and Understandings 

 Both “summer league” ball fields, playing surfaces, backstop, fences, buildings, 

batting cages, field lighting and light poles, and the electric service and all 

“summer league” fields are the property of the West Branch Community School 

District.  

 The school will retain full ownership of both “summer league” ball fields, playing 

surfaces, backstop, fences, buildings, batting cages, field lighting and light poles, 

and the electric service.  

 The school district takes formal possession of electric meter and lights for fields at 

the “summer league” fields. 

 The concession stand will be used by the summer league / City for only a few 

tournaments a year and will remain available to ASA, USSSA, YSA and City flag 

football use. 

 There is electric in the storage side of the concession stand and it will remain 

active and usable for pitching machines and batting cage use. 



 

 

 Electricity for Legion Field concession stand, press box, batting cages are on this 

same electrical service and will remain active and usable. 

 The District will continue to provide mowing support as in the past. 

 The District will continue to order, maintain and pay for port-o-potties and large 

waste bins. (District absorbs cost of a few hundred dollars a year.) 

 Direct playing field maintenance such a backstop / fence repairs, field issues, dirt 

surface repairs and bases will be completed by the City to the satisfaction of the 

District. 

 The City / organizations are still responsible for supplying lime, field markings 

and equipment, rakes, tractors and drag and gas. 

 The City / organizations are still responsible for summer league / league batting 

cage nets, poles, ground surface, pitching machine, and related balls and 

equipment. 

 Individual teams are responsible for getting trash into the trash cans (provided by 

City). The City will ensure that these are emptied regularly and the grounds are 

kept clean to the satisfaction of the District. 

 The City will take / retain ownership and full responsibility for the tractor, field 

drags, and push mower used for these fields, all field markings equipment, all 

umpire gear, all pitching machines, batting cage nets and poles, all bases, all team 

equipment, (bats, catching gear, balls, helmets, etc.)/ 

 The City will take / retain ownership and full responsibility of concession stand 

equipment (popcorn maker, refrigerators / freezers, etc.) currently located in the 

summer league building and generally known as the “summer league’s” materials.  

 
Part II: Scheduling of Fields 
 

 The City will maintain the field use schedule between April 1st (first week of April) 

and July 1st (first week of July) for the “summer league” boys and girls diamonds.   

 Usage of the facilities by the City for the purposes of recreational and competitive 

baseball and softball will be permitted as stated above for a period of one year. 

(April 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020)   

Monday – Thursday: Summer league priority on the boys’ and girls’ 
diamonds from the start of the second week in April until the start of the first 
week in July. 
o 1-2 grade boys’ and girls’ teams-approx. 60 kids 

o 3 - 4 grade boys’ teams - approx. 25 kids 

o 3 - 6 grade girls’ teams - approx. 25 kids 

Friday – Sunday: USSSA and ASA team priority on the boys’ and girls’ 
diamonds from the start of the second week in April until the start of the first 
week in July.  



 

 

o USSSA competitive boys’ teams- approx. 20 kids 

o ASA competitive girls’ teams - approx. 30 kids 

 
  

 USSSA, ASA, and other competitive teams will fall under the umbrella of the city 

summer league program.  They will continue to share responsibility for daily care 

and maintenance of the fields, share in the cost of maintenance and maintenance 

items, and schedule field usage through the city.  The teams will continue to use 

the provided supplies and equipment for preparation and care of the playing 

surfaces.  USSSA and ASA are responsible for their own insurance per their 

organizations requirements or as directed by the city. 

 Any further development, beyond general maintenance and repair to the “summer 

league” baseball and softball fields can only occur with the school’s permission. 

 
 
Part III: Fees and Account Transfers per Merger 

 The City’s Parks and Recreation Division will establish an annual budget of $1000 

to reimburse the district for use of fields and lights as needed; summer league use, 

USSA use, ASA team use between April 1st (first week of April) and July 1st (first 

week of July) each year. 

 The Legion baseball complex is not, and has not been a part of summer league.  

They are their own stand-alone organization and not part of this agreement except 

for electricity usage. 

 
 
_______________________________________ ___________   _________________________________________  ________ 
City Representative   Date  Board President   Date 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1793 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 

THE WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT RELATING TO THE 

SUMMER LEAGUE PROGRAMS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch Community School District and the City of West Branch have 

common interest in supporting sports and activities during the summer months; and 

 

WHEREAS, Summer League Programs has the power to shape kids and adults alike with 

positive experiences by creating an environment for a healthy outlet for physical activity and 

while these benefits are innumerable; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is important for the School District and the City to seek partnerships where 

possible to provide services when our goals are shared; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Understanding related to this resolution explains the areas 

of commitment as it relates to the implementation of the Summer League Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve the Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa. That the aforementioned Memorandum of Understanding is hereby accepted. 

 

 
 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1794 – A Resolution Approving Various Contracts for the 

Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of $6,530.17. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  March 12, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Vendor Contracts 
Coralville Parks & Recreation $   925.00 
Big Ten Rentals $1,166.17 
Jordan Danielsen $   600.00 
Martika Daniels $   575.00 
Pony Rides $1,280.00 
Port O Jonny $   784.00 
Vintage $   200.00 
Yotty’s $1,000.00 

Total $6,530.17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Saturday, 3 2019 

March 7, 2019 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1794 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS CONTRACTS FOR THE HOOVER’S 

HOMETOWN DAYS CELEBRATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,530.17 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s premier event of the year is Hoover’s Hometown Days; and  

 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget for Hoover’s Hometown Days includes funding 

for entertainment and services for the event; and  

 

WHEREAS, three organizations have submitted proposed service agreements in the amount of 

$6,530.17 to provide musical entertainment, children’s activities, performance stages, golf 

carts and restroom facility services for use during the event; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreements.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the aforementioned agreements are hereby approved. Further, the Mayor is directed 

to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.  

 

* * * * * * * * 

 
Passed and approved this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1795 – Approving the Recreation Facility, Park & Sport Field 

Use and Fee Policy. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  March 12, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

It is the policy of the West Branch Parks Department and Recreation Department to control the 

use of recreation facilities, parks and sport fields, to protect these resources and to allow usage 

to individuals, groups and organizations based on availability and priority. Use shall be 

consistent with City Policies and Ordinances, and promote wellness, recreation, and positive 

participation and sportsmanship. The City desires to be supportive of such use and will 

schedule and help facilitate their use in accordance with the requirements of this policy. 

This policy is intended to enhance the recreation opportunities and events available to the 

citizens of West Branch; to facilitate City and non-City use and scheduling of recreational 

venues; to offer recreation programming for participants and spectators and to adequately 

reimburse the City for expenses related to providing this use. 

Field rental fees recommendations are based on the fees in other communities and what would 

be appropriate for the West Branch community.  The West Branch Parks and Recreation 

Commission discussed the fees at the January 10, 2019 meeting and the February 14, 2019.   
  
Please see attached: 

 Field Rental Rates Comparison 

 West Branch Parks and Recreation Field Use Request Form 

 Recreation Facility, Park and Sports Field Use and Fee Policy 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 
Field Rental Rates Comparison 

    

Resident West Branch 
Solon (non-park 
and rec fees) West Liberty 

Practice 1 1/2 hours  $               5.00   NA   NA  

Game-2 hours dragged not lined  $            10.00   $                   12.50   $                           5.00  

        

Tournament 1 field 1 day  $            75.00   $                 125.00   $                         40.00  

Tournament 1 fields 2 days  $          125.00   $                 250.00   $                         80.00  

        

Tournament 2 fields 1 day  $          125.00   $                 200.00   $                         80.00  

Tournament 2 fields 2 days  $          175.00   $                 400.00   $                       160.00  

        

Tournament 3 fields 1 day  $          150.00   $                 275.00   $                       120.00  

Tournament 3 fields 2 days  $          225.00   $                 550.00   $                       240.00  

Non-resident West Branch 
Solon (non-park 

and rec fees) West Liberty 

Practice 1 1/2 hours  $            10.00   NA   NA  

Game-2 hours lined field  $            15.00   $                   12.50   $                           5.00  

        

Tournament 1 field 1 day  $          125.00   $                 125.00   $                         60.00  

Tournament 1 fields 2 days  $          200.00   $                 250.00   $                       120.00  

        

Tournament 2 fields 1 day  $          150.00   $                 200.00   $                       120.00  

Tournament 2 fields 2 days  $          250.00   $                 400.00   $                       240.00  

        

Tournament 3 fields 1 day  $          200.00   $                 275.00   $                       180.00  

Tournament 3 fields 2 days  $          325.00   $                 550.00   $                       360.00  

    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recreation Facility, Sport Field Use & Fee Policy 
It is the policy of the West Branch Parks Department and Recreation Department to control the 
use of recreation facilities, parks and sport fields, to protect these resources and to allow 
usage to individuals, groups and organizations based on availability and priority. Use shall be 
consistent with City Policies and Ordinances, and promote wellness, recreation, and positive 
participation and sportsmanship. The City desires to be supportive of such use and will 
schedule and help facilitate their use in accordance with the requirements of this policy. 

Purpose 

This policy is intended to enhance the recreation opportunities and events available to the 
citizens of West Branch; to facilitate City and non-City use and scheduling of recreational 
venues; to offer recreation programming for participants and spectators and to adequately 
reimburse the City for expenses related to providing this use. 

User Groups 

The City recognizes the following categories of users and user groups: 

 City orof West Branch Programs 

 West Branch School District 

 Community-based (organizations organized in and operated from West Branch), 
volunteer-operated recreation organizations 

 Organizations providing competitive, accelerated or super league programming 

 Adult recreation leagues or programs 

 Privately owned and operated program providers 

 Corporate, commercial, business, church or family groups 

 

Prioritization of Users 

The West Branch Parks and Recreation Departments reserve the right to schedule activities 
and events on facilities, parks and sport fields on an "as available" basis. The following priority 
applies to all scheduling for use of facilities: 

1. West Branch Parks and Recreation programs 

2. West Branch Community School District 

3. West Branch community-based recreation organizations 



 

 

4. West Branch non-profit competitive, accelerated or super league youth programs 

5. West Branch non-profit adult recreation leagues or programs 

6. All others 

Guidelines 

1. West Branch Parks and Recreation reserves the right to schedule activities and events on 
facilities and parks on an "as available" basis. West Branch Parks and Recreation reserves the 
right to cancel any scheduled activity due to conditions or circumstances that are determined 
to be detrimental, unsafe or in conflict with City Ordinances and policies. 

2. Users conducting their activities for commercial or individual financial gain are not endorsed 
by the City. Conducting business or sale of merchandise for profit is prohibited, without prior 
approval by the City.Park and Recreation Director.  

3. The recreation facilities, parks and sport field use fees will be paid in advance of use and 
before the event is scheduled on the calendar for a single use event such as a tournament.  
Regular weekly practices, games, or events will be billed at the end of the month based on the 
reservation calendar.  Teams, team members, or individuals that do not pay the fee by the 
deadline will have all future reservations deleted until the previous bill is up to date. 

 4. Cancellation of an event due to weather, facility or field conditions, or city-declared 
emergency will be rescheduled, if possible, or refunded. Playability of fields will be determined 
by the Sport Site Supervisor or Parks Supervisor and Recreation Director. 

5. Cancellation of an event due to user failing to comply with this policy or City Code and 
policies, or due to acts or activities deemed to be offensive or harmful, shall not receive a 
refund. The City reserves the right to prohibit the user from future use of or scheduling of the 
facilities. 

6. No fireworks, weapons or other dangerous devices are permitted in park or facility areas. 
Camping, archery or amplified sound equipment must be approved through the City's special 
event policy. 

7. Alcohol is not allowed at Heritage Square, Lions Field, or Wapsi Park without West Branch 
City Council authorization. 

78. User shall release, indemnify and hold harmless the City of West Branch, its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees and volunteers from any and all claims, damages, 
lawsuits, losses and expenses (including attorney fees) arising out of or resulting from User's 
performance or failure to perform this agreement and all of User's activities conducted on 
City's facilities/property.  

89. Users shall make every reasonable and prudent effort to keep the area in which user's 
activities are held, clean and free from trash or other debris. User will clean up any trash and 
debris generated by user's activities and place it in trash containers provided by the City. The 
User is responsible for any maintenance or cleanup cost incurred through the negligence of 
the User of any area or facility.  



 

 

910. Scheduling must be requested annually. No automatic or protected right to use because 
of previous use shall be granted. The City reserves the right to deny use of City facilities to any 
user that, in the City's opinion, has had public relations problems, has abused City facilities or 
property, has administered its programs in such a way to cause discredit to the City or has not 
paid all fees due or past due. 

1011. The City assumes no financial responsibility for the user's group, programs or any of their 
constituents. 

1112. Users shall abide by sport or event-specific rules and field usage rules. All tournaments, 
games and practice games need to be scheduled through West Branch Parks and Recreation. A 
game is defined by any one of the following criteria: 

 a. If there is more than one team present. 

 b. If there are officials present, certified or not, or coaches acting as officials. 

 c. If players are in uniform. 

 d. If one of the teams travels to game site from another city or location. 

1213. All games and programs must end by 9:45 p.m., unless approved by the Parks and 
Recreation Director at least 48 hours in advance. All lights must be turned off by 10:00 p.m. 

1314. No painting or altering of fields is allowed. Moving of bleachers, tables or other 
equipment owned, maintained or managed by the City is not allowed. 

1415. Concessions will be maintained and operated by the City of West Branch unless 
specifically directed otherwise by the Parks and Recreation Director. 

1516.  Users are allowed to charge a gate fee to spectators of the event, however the park 
patrons will not be charged the fee. 

Fees 

Non-Parks and Rec Practice and game for WB resident and team (at least 1 team player must 
reside in West Branch City limits) at Cubby Park: 
1.5-hour practice per diamond (not lined only dragged)-$5 
2-hour game (not lined only dragged)-$10 
 

Non-Parks and Rec Practice and game for non-WB resident at Cubby Park and Summer 
League Field: 
1.5-hour practice per diamond (not lined only dragged)-$10 
2-hour game per diamond (not lined only dragged)-$15 

 
Tournament Fee (3 teams or more) Cubby Park Only or Lions Field for WB Resident and team 
1 diamond or soccer field - $75 per day   $50 for 2nd day of 2-day tournament 
2 diamonds - $100 per day     $75 for 2nd day of 2-day tournament 
3 diamonds - $125 per day    $100 for 2nd day of a 2-day tournament 

 



 

 

Tournament Fee (3 teams or more) Cubby Park Only or Lions Field for non-WB Resident and 
team 
1 diamond or soccer field - $125 per day   $75 for 2nd day of 2-day tournament 
2 diamonds - $150 per day     $100 for 2nd day of 2-day tournament 
3 diamonds - $200 per day    $125 for 2nd day of 2-day tournament 
 
Event and Tournament Fee at Summer League Fields 
Events / tournaments requiring (4) hours or less of facilities time will be charged $20 dollars for 
post maintenance fee.  
 
Events / tournaments requiring (4) hours or more of facilities time will be charged $30 dollars 
per facility(field) for facilities use, in addition to a $30 fee for post-maintenance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1795 

 

AN RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RECREATION FACILITY, PARK & SPORT 

FIELD USE AND FEE POLICY 

 

 WHEREAS, It is the policy of the West Branch Parks Department and Recreation 

Department to control the use of recreation facilities, parks and sport fields, to protect these 

resources and to allow usage to individuals, groups and organizations based on availability and 

priority; and 

 WHEREAS, the use of such facilities shall be consistent with City Policies and 

Ordinances; and 

 WHEREAS, it the intent of the City of West Branch to promote wellness, recreation, 

and positive participation and sportsmanship; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to be supportive of such use and will schedule and help 

facilitate their use in accordance with the requirements of this policy; and 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said policy and resolution. 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned policy is hereby approved. Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.  

 

* * * * * * * * 

 
Passed and approved this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 


